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Esh Holdings Limited
Strategic Report

The directors present théir strategic repoit for the year ended 31 December 2023
Principal activities

The: principal. activities of the group, during the year were civil engineering, house building, and genéral
construction.

The: principal activities of the Company.- is that of holditig investments and the provision' of management.and.
support services to the trading group.

Corporate Overview

Our industry continued to wrestle with a range of challenges during 2023, the majority of which related to the
hangover from the global pandemic, and the additional pressures caused by geopolitical events. Unlike many
‘other ihdustries, dramatic ‘economic shocks take considerable time to-work out, mainly .due to the long term
contract nature of construction revenues.

Moreover, broader macroeconomic factors continued to weigh on our industry, with demand generally subdued,
particularly within the Private Housing market, linked to higher borrowing costs and the impact of persistently
‘high inflation, alongside a riumber of key development projects paused 'or delayed as investors worked to adjust
their business models to higher funding and credit costs. '

These broader pressures took-a heavy. toll on industry patticipants. all the way through the supply chain, with
those lacking in the necessary financial and operational strength suffering the ultimate fate. These insolvencies
are tragic for all those involved, but in‘ many respects, they have-cleared space for organisations like ours to grow
our market share, which has very much been the case for Esh Group during the year

Our business model stands out.for its inbuilt resilience. A detailed analysis of the construction market carried
out several years ago has driven a fundamental redesign of this business model to ensure resilience and
predictability over the economic.cycle. Our decision to rebalance from the heavy expostire to the cyclical private
sector, to.a more evenly balaniced ‘spread across the private sector, public sector and the utilities sector has
insulated us from the worst effects of cost inflation and supply chain pressures, ostensibly due to the favourable
type-and duration of contracts that our chosen sectors operate under.

Business Model

Our business ‘model centres around 4 key market segments that demonstrate behaviours that are c]assed as'
cyclical, counter cyclical and non cyclical, and are all blended in a complimentary manner. The following
represents an overview of their dynamics.

Utilities and Environmental Services

Our work for Northumbrian Water and thie Environment Agency (EA) sits within this segrment. Having recently
secured our positior on new, multi-year frameworks for both clients, we are poised to see considerable growth
in revenues. Pressure to invest in wastewater and flood management infrastructure has never been higher, with
both Northumbrian Water and the EA rolling oit thé largesf capital programmes in their history. Through our
strategic partnership with global.engineering giant Stantec Inc, we remain well placed to benefit from very high
levels of demand over.the coming years.
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Strategic report (Continued)
Local Authorities'

Whilst the. public purse is. under growing pressure from broadef fiscal constraints, our chosen geographies
continue to demonstrate resilience, driven in the large part by the ‘level up’ agenda, and the need.to regenerate
the many deprived areas that exist:in our regions. High profile schemes like Teesworks, Sunderland Riverside,
A66 widening, AIM improvement, Durham Towns Regeneration, Newcastle Quayside and South Tyneside
industrial programme are creating a general ‘halo’ effect on.the broader infrastructure market, and with our place
on key procirement frameworks, demand remains strong, supported. by both central and local governnient
funding. '

Private Housing

Private Housing demand saw a considerable reduction in the autumn of 2022 'folk).wing the ‘mini budget’. This
marked the end of a period of significantly inflated volumes and prices for this market, and so.a period, of rapid
adjustment followed..

Voluries reduced, with prices at best remainirig flat. This is a characteristic fioted by: all private housebuilders.

Moreover, with the ongoirig impact of the cost of living, alongside an increase in borrowing costs-to levels not
seen for nearly.20 years, buyer sentiment has also been markedly subdued. Combine these factors with ongoing
regulatory -and planning challenges, then overall volumes have inexorably fallen since their peak in 2022,

In many respects, this was. a necessary adjustment, as volume growth had put immense pressure-on already
constrained supply chains, with this being a major factor in the exceptionally high lévéls of input cost inflation
seen since the easing of restrictions following the pandemic.

Our participation in this seginent is directly via our Homes by Esh business, and indirectly as part of the supply
chain via our civil engineering and groundworks business, Lumsden & Carroll, and at a local level, our
experience has been somewhat différent to the broader market rhetoric.

Whilst Homes. by Esh has certainly seen a reduction in volumes from ‘the peak, sales rates -are broadly at pre-
pandémic levels, with prices remaining ostensibly flat. Our choice fo participate in the ‘good’ and ‘better™
segments of this market.means our product remains affordable, even at elevated levels of mortgage rates. This
is also driven by regional factors, wher¢ prices and volumes never reached the ‘frothy’ levels:that perhaps the
South and Hoime Counties experienced, hénce the adjustmeént has not been as dramatic.

Similarly; Lumsden & Carroll has not seen a material reduction in orders, and whilst production releases have.
beeri truncated compared with the heady days of 2021/2022, it appears many of the larger housebuilders are
‘focussing on a greater number of outlets to achieve their volumes, :supporting a bealthy level of tenders and
enquiries.for this business.

Moreover; employment levels in a region that has a large amount of public sector workets, has remained
reasoniably stable, supporting buyer corifidence in the face of broader economic headwinds.

That said, management remain focussed on all léading indicators, with an intensive focus on'sales rates, mortgage
approvals, cancellation rates and cycle time from reservation to exchange being key metrics for understanding
future market: behaviour, thus allowing us to be ready to adapt the business to whatever conditions ultimately
prevail.
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Strategic report (Continued)

Over the long.run, management remain confident in the rationale to retain a balanced exposure to this segmeiit,
with the ongoing shortdge of'new housing exacerbated by the pandemic yéars, anid the more recent affordability
challenges.

Affordable Housing

This segment is continuing its journey of adjustment to a new level of build costs following the ramparit inflation
seen over the last 24 months, alongside substantial changes to build codes and regulations, adding further cost
butdens: With headline rental income barely tracking général inflation, scheme viability has come under
considerable pressure. This has led to @ number of schemes falling away, alongside Social Landlords prioritising
schemes within capital constraints as they balance the need for new .construction alongside:a burgeoning need to
improve the standard, as well as the carbon efficiency, of their housing stock.

Government grant funding via Homes England has increased substantially over thie last 18 months in an effoit
to close some. of the viability gaps, and whilst this has -enabled an number of projects to come forward, the
planning system and its inherent bureaucracy, in addition issues surrounding the satisfaction of nufritional and
bio-diversity regulations, is adding further delays to scheme comiméncements.

For our group, these factors have been mitigated in the Jarge part by a-considerable increase in market share,
driven by a combination beur'relationsfxip management and framiework participation, as well as market space
cleared by :a number of keéy competitors who have either ceased trading or withdrawn from the market to focus.
on other areas.

We have also seen a.growing positivity from our strategy to pivot.our route to market to be more land led (where
we source and coritrol the land). ‘We have the largest pipeline of land led projects since we embarked on this
stiategy, with these projects containing an inherently lower risk than.a traditional single stage tendered project.
We are quickly approaching around 60% of our iew build revenues secured through this channel.

And at a macro level, this-market segment continues.to demonstrate very strong long term fundamentals.

The country remains desperately. short of new affordable housing, and with a reduced level of Section 106
availability due to the reduced level of private sector new build, alongside a dramatic increase in the cost of
private rental housing, this démandis sét.to increase and remain elevated over the medium to long term, And
with this priority central to both main political parties, this situation. us unlikély to change regardless of the
outcome if the imminent general election.

Furthermore, there remains a growing demand.for existing stock repair and maintenance (R&M), fuelled by the
net zero commitment to decarbonise residential dwellings, as well as the high profile cases of damp and mould
‘making many social housing dwellings unsafe and uninhabitable. Our R&M division is exceptionally well
placed to capitalise on this opportunity having recently secured places on key procurement frameworks for this
kind of work,
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Strategic report (Continued)
Summary

The deep market analysis that was carried aut several years ago has led to a business-model designed to even out
the peaks and troughs of the construction industry’s demand profile over the economic cycle. This design has
proven its success, enabling us to avoid the worst of the pressures the ‘industry has expetienced, and has been
complimented by-robust and prudent financial disciplines ensuring the business had the appropriate resources to
succeed — these factors have seen us through the challenging times, and will now set us up to capitalise on the
recovery, and then growth, that the industry-will experience.over the.coming years.

And key factors in delivering the next stage: of our strategy will continueto be our team of highly skilled and
dedicated colleagues, ‘our valued clients, our supportive and loyal supply chains and our community of broader
stakeholders. We would like to thank them all for their continued support,

In return, our group will strive to become the “trusted expert’ for our clients, with a. laser focus on quality,
dependability, innovation and continuous improvement, whilst.continuing to drive lasting social.and economic
value for the communities in which we work, all the while, doing it to the highest level of safety and
environmental standards.

Key performance indicators

2023 2022
£ £

“Tumover, .including share of joint veritures ‘ £292.5m £286.8m '
Changeg in turnover 2.0% 32%
Gross profit margin 6.1% 5,6%
Operating profit £2.9m £29m-
Profit before taxation attribirtablé to. ownérs of the parent £3.1m £2.0m
Cash at bank and.in hand £16.9m £12.4m
Net cash (used in) 7 generated from operating activities £3.7m . (£8.2m)

Business Review

Whilst our business model has very much insulated us from-the worst of the challenges experienced by the
broader industry, our ‘group has not, of course, been completely immune to'all the effects.

2023 yery much played out as‘a. ‘game of two halves’.

The first half of the year was dominatéd by completing the tdil end of our restructuring programme, with the,
final ‘measures including the disposal of our Facilities Managemert business, alongside downsizing our
commercial build operations. We also.closed out'a number of jobs that had been heavily impacted by inflation,
as well as delays and quality issues stemming from supply chain failures,

The second half. of the year saw a considerablé recovery in eamings as these matters were put behind ‘us,
supported by a raft of new contract wins that are free of inflation challenges, marking a considerable shift in our
underlying eamings. Notable during the year was yet another record performance from our Civil Engineering
division, alongside another.commendable performance from our Homes by Esh division, which, despite t_he'
growing headwinds; benefited from a sizeable level of forward sales comiing in to the year.
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Strategic report (Continued)

More notable, however, is the dramatic increase in the size of the group’s order book. Following a considerable
growth in share of the new build affordable housing market, a pr’dporﬁ_qn_ of which being dueto the demise of a
range of competitors, alongside the Securing of some major civil engineering projects (Tyne Bridge Restoration,
Stockton Waterfront Urban Park), and of course the securing of a place on the 12, year Northumbrian Water
AMPS Enterprise framework, the forward order book.is. now well ixx‘exccss’ of £1bn, the highiest it has ever been
for the group:. Moreover, this order book comprises contracts ‘that aré in a form and sfructure that allows the
group to more effectively manage the risk / reward equation.

So for 2023, the: group reported a profit before tax of £3.1m after recdrditx‘g fixed interest costs associated with
our group wide credit facility and finance costs related to-our Private Housing business, Homies by Esh, alongside-
some gains from our development activities. This represents a 50% increase over the previous year.

The group continues-to maintain a strong balance-sheet at £35.8m £16.9m of which is ini net cash, with further
liquidity of-£6m available on the group’s undrawn credit line, taking total group liquidity to £23m. This liquidity
-is the:product of strong EBITDA, a‘tremendous-working: capital performance, and-income-from the sale-of some
frechold assets. The group remains focussed on driving capital efficiency across all of its operations, with ‘gold
standard’ working capital processes complimented by a numiber of joint ventures that serve to both reduce risk.
and limit capital exposure. During the year, the group refinanced its existing credit facilities to a iew £6m, threg-
year credit line at considerably lower cost than.the previous facility, despite increased bank base rates,

Fiiture Developments - Financial Year 2024 Outlook

Clearly -the broader economic picture continues to demonstrate some degree of volatility. The board will
continue to monitor rhacro economic ‘events to erisure that the business is equippéd to navigate whatever
circumstances prevail.

That_said, the strength of the order book, alongside the final bleed out of contracts that were heavily impacted
by inflation and supply chain challenges, gives rise to a more favourable backdrop for 2024.

Moreover, the inflationary environmeént remains relatively benign, with some moderate increases éxpected in
material costs to be offset by a notable level of deflation in the cost of labour and trades. This,. along with a
palpable improvement in the availability of both material and labour resources indicates a more stable operating
environment during 2024.

With an anticipated expansion in volumes during the year, the board remains cautiously optimistic for further
improvements in earnings and liquidity, to the extent that it- will be shortly considering the resumption of
dividends to ordinary shareholders.

Principal risks and uncertsdinties

Thé construction industry is exposed to nurnerous risks and challenges, which most recently has included macro
economic uncertainty and considerable pressures from supply chain constraints and input cost inflation, The
management team remains vigilant to these risks and challenges, and will continue to adapt-the organisation to
the environments within which it operates.

The board is confident that the now rationalised and more focussed business model; combined with a set of
business activities that are diverse enough, yet sufficiently complimentary, will enable effective management of
risk across all of the sectors.in which the group operates.

The principal risks-faced by the group and the action taken to mitigate these are presenied in the table below.
These are considered to be the most important to the future developtment and performance of the business.
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-refurbishment and maintenance projects. We
need to continue to deliver these within
programmes and match or exceed clients’
requitements, profitably and within agreed
financial parameters.

Successful delivery of many of these projects
depends on-the successful implémentation
and mainténance of aTange of operational and
commercial procedures and controls.

Risk description How it is mitigated
Project.execition.
The group undeitakes  construction, | -Each business unit has defined operating procedures to address the

risks inherent.in project delivery. Furthermore, a well-established.
commercial and financial risk management framework ‘is in
operation, using Structured review meetings and reporfing, with
key risks identified-early in the projectdelivery.

We also hiave public indeminity cover to provide firther safeguards.

| Tendering

Through our différent business units, we seek
to win profitable work through a large number
of competitive ‘tenders and contract
negotiations.

This depends on our -ability to price and add
value in our tender offering, driven by an
efficient operating model, and a ciear focus on
quality :delivery, social and ecoriomic added
value.

All bids are subject to proven, rigorous estimating and tendering-

processes within a defined framework; using skilled resources.

We have delegated authority levels for approving all tennders and a
formal tender review process.

‘We undertake reviews following both successful. and unsuccessful’
tenders to ensure we learn from them and apply those.lessons to
future tenders.

Our culture of delivering social value within the cornmunities in
which we work provides a point of differentiation from many of
our competitors, producing upper quartile tender success rates.

The group has also increased the amount of tumover that is:secured
via ‘land led’, directly negotiated or two-stage tender routes, which
significantly reduces the risks and challenges associated with pure
competitively tendered projects: '

“The group maintains strict controls around risk pricing, particularly

associated with input cost inflation and resource availability,.
ensuring that the significant impact of recent inflationary*pressures
-and shortages is mitigated going forward.

People

We need to recruit and retain the best
managéement and employees. These menibers
of staff should have appropriate competencies
and also sharé our values and behaviours,

We measure all potential recruits for key roles in the organisation
against a competency framework. We undeitake staff appraisals to
review the roles, competencies, performances and potential of
personnel. We have a well-developed succession planning process
to identify/ and develop high potential personnel to fill key roles,

People matters are reviewed regularly and discussed at all levels
within the organisation and by the Board.

We have appropriate remuneration and incentive packages, which
includes the selective allocation 6f growth:equity, to.help us-attract
and retain key employees. We-also use a-well-connected, group of
recruitment consultants and advisors to ensure we connect with the
bést talent within the industry.

The future growth in revenues will require additional resources,
which i assessed and planined as part of a group wide organisation
feview process '
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Strategic report (Continued)

Risk description

How it is mitigated

Supply chain

We are reliant on_our supply chain
partiers for ‘successfiil operational
delivery, which means we are. also
exposed to -a variety of risks in the
supply: chain. The group is also
exposed to the global issue of cost
price inflation

Our strategic supply-chain. management processes, where possible, aligns us
to large, robust suppliers whose access to inaterial and resources is preferred
given their size and scale; a. factor. equally supported by our own size,
regional presence and buying capacity.

We develop long-term relationships with our subcontractors, working.
closely with them to. understand their operations and work with them to
‘ensure their tapacity planning can be optimised.

We -aim to work as miuch as possible with preferred suppliers and
subcontractors who undergo rigorous, risk-based prequalification processes:
and share our values. We-gini to avoid becoming over reliant on any one
supplier or subcontractor.

) Through selective procurement allocation, we have been able to leverage

strong -commitmerit from our supply chain to ensure. maximum availability
of materials and labour. ‘The group has robust forward planning processes
to provide our supply chains with as much forward visibility as possible,
significantly mitigating the risk of supply shortages.

Moreover, we have, where sensible, concentrated spend with coré suppliers
to maximise. rebate opportunities, which has served to mitigate the impact
of inflation over recent.years.

The group also carries out comprehensive. procurement -strategy reviews,
defailing opportunities for cost down, inflation mitigation, price
‘benchimarking, specification cianges-and supply re:sourcing.

Health and safety

The group. works on projects. which
require continuous monitoring and
management ‘of health and safety
risks.

The group has a highly developed health, safety and environmental process.
This process is underpinned by documented procedures and working
practices. Policy is set by the Baard, and cascaded through the organisation
‘via a team of dedicated health and safety professionals, who continually
audit and review on site operations. for campliance; as well as liaising with
external vetification bodies: ’

Accident frequéncy rates remain well below the. industry average.

Health and safety remains the first agenda item at all board meetings, and is
a critical focus for all directors.

‘Main board directors, including the CEO, regularly carry out site visits to
validaté and verify safety compliance and standards.

Regulatory, market and economic

The Group operates. in markets and
segments. that are influenced by a
range. of extemal factors. The
tesilience -and, petformance of the
constructionsector, and the housing
market in particular, is at risk from
regulatory change, political change
and thie impact of monetary policy
and financial system regulation,

“The' Group maintains a diversified portfolio-of operating activities, some of
which behave in a counter cyclical manner, and most.of which are aligned
to well-funded, blue chip client bases.

The board is alive to the challenges currently ficed by the private housing
market, and has plans in place to mitigate the impsct.of any material decline
by shifting resources to carry out intercompany work, as well as rightsizing.
the operating cost base to align to any significant reduction in turnover.

Moreover, thé group is-confident that its balanced.portfolio of revenues will
permit a reasonable smoothing of cyclical patterns across industry segments,
with other revenue streams rising to compensate for falls elsewhére.
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Risk. description

How it is mitigated

.Business process and IT systems

To continue to expand ‘the business, Esh Group
acknowledge that information and associated
technology must be robust and meet busiiiess needs.

. The group has recently made significant investments

in technology that.as has brought together a number
of disparate processes, as. well as driving greater use
of digifal tools. to make the entire ‘order to cash’

" process more integrated. ‘This investment i§ expected

to provide a sufficient operating platform for the
group to.achieve its business objectives

Business. is Curtailed by COVID 19

The after effects of the Covid-19 pandemic: continue
-|-to-exert.operational.challenges. on. the.group:

With inflationary pressures now subsiding, and

-|-supply -chains -restored -to--near -normal -levels, -the -

board considers. the impact of the: pandemic. to be
significantly reduced for the group going. forward.
However, the leaning from the pandemic is now
embedded in our risk management processes, with
appropriate tools ready to be deployed should such a
situation re-ocour.
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Streamlined Energy and CarbonReporting (SECR) disclosure

Quantification and reporting methodology:

We have followed the 2019 HM Govemment Environmental Reporting. Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used thie 2021 UK Govemment's Conversion Factors: for

Company Reporting,
Operational scopes:

We have measured our scopes 1,2 and certain scope-3 emissions.

Current year | Previous year
B e T o e
Energy consumption used to calculaté emissions (kWh) 34,443,933 41,164,695
Ene_rgy'cbnsumption~'bre'akdown~(kWh):
cgas | | 209080 | 278751
- electricity 146,980 173,293
* wood burning 0 ‘ AO .
‘e purchased fuel | 34,087,873 | 40,712,651
SCOPE 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e = o
Gas consqmption~ o A 37..63 50.18 B
Purchased fuel - diesel, petrol & gas ol 722422 | 859472
Wood burning ' 0 0
Total Scope 1 7,261.86 8,644.90
SCOPE 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e o L
Purchased electricity 30.44 33,51
Total Scope 2 . 30.44 33.51
SCOPE 3 emissions in metric torines COZe S P
Business Travel in employee owned vehicies 1,452.57 1',520.44'
Total Scope 3 1,452.57 1,520.44
Total gross emissions in'metric tonnes CO2e: 8,744.87 10,198.85 .
Intensity ration Tonnes pef employee 12.10 1418
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Section 172 (1) statement

The Esh Group board believes that all matters it is responsible for under Section 172 (1) of the Companies Act
2006 have been considered to an appropriate extent. Each director, acting in good faith, promotes the success of
the company for the benefit of its stakeholders as a whole, and in doing so has regard to relevant matters where
appropriate. To the extent necessary for an understanding of the development, performance and position of Esh
Holdings, examples of how the board has considered the matters set out in Section 172 (1) are detailed in the

table below:

Considering likely consequences of any decision in the
long term

The group has a strong culture of monthly forecasting and
has a 3 year strategic plan. The consequences of changes
to monthly forecasts are therefore considered for longer
term impact on the 3 year plan and beyond.

Taking the interests of the Esh Construction’s
employees into account

Employee feedback is actively sought through staff
surveys, team meetings and informal communication. The
Leadership Team of the Esh Group take this feedback
seriously and have an ongoing improvement plan for
further enhancing employee engagement.

Fostering the company's business relationships with
suppliers, customers and others, and maintaining a
reputation for high standards of business conduct

As outlined in the Corporate Governance section of this
report, the group maintains and enforces a suite of
policies, notably on ethical behaviour.

The impact of Esh Construction on the community and
the environment

‘Constructing Local’ is a key strategic initiative of the
Group, as outlined in the Strategic report. This places the
communities and stakeholders in the geographies that we
operate at the heart of all that we do.

Acting fairly as between members of the company

The Esh Holdings board includes representatives of all
material shareholders. There is a Board ethos of openness,
transparency and consensus decision making such that all
major decisions require unanimous approval. Minority
shareholders are, in the main, also employees of the
company and often consulted through other mediums
described above, however, due legal processes are
followed when required by Company Law or the Articles
of Association.

— —c___

AE Radcliffe
Director

26% June 2024
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Corporate Governance

Esh Group Guiding Principles

“The Esh Group Board are committed to maintaining and, where appropriate, improving standards of Corporate
Governanice, Whilst adherence to the Combined Code on Corporate Governance issued by the Financial
Reporting Council is not obligatory for Esh Group, embracingthe spirit of the Code ensures the creation and
maintenance of sound business systerms and an appropriate lével of embedded internal control.

The govemance model outlined below has been designed by the Esh Group Board as an adaptation of the
traditional best practice, three lines of defence 10 risk management.

Esh Group Sector Directors and Management

Sector Directors and Management.own the risks.and take responsibility for-directly assessmg, controlling and

‘mitigating risks in their areas by way of organisation strength, a strong and well understood chain of command

-and strict oversight and scrutiny. They employ a range of internal controls which are built into the design of the

control environment using either manual processes or system generated control, which forms. the first line of”
defence in the Esh Group governance model to:manage risks. )

Esh Group maintains a program of continuous improvement in respect of all its internal control.

The Esh Group Board and Group Policies

The Board consists of both Executive and Non-Executive members and therefore. draws on a wide range of
experience both internally and externally when considering the establishment of Group ‘Strategy and Policy. It
has established the foundations that are the core of Esh Group ifi terms of its.culture, vision and values. The Esh
Group Corporate Values are documented and communicated directly to all employees, workers and business
partners. .

The Board delegate to the Sector Directors and Managenient, the day, to-day operation of the businesses within
clear well-defined authority limits. Where appropriate, business decisions are reached following a structured.and.
documented review of potential opportunities and threats. The process is desxgned to manage or mitigate any
residual risk exposure identified.

However, the Board retains-a schedule of matters reserved for its approval only, namely; the company strategy
and.review of performance, the-appointment of key execiitives, approval of accounts, approval of the business
plan, budget and financial policies, consideration of potential major projects, acquisitions or disposals of business
sectors, opportunities in new markets; health and safety, the environment, business €thics, risk management,
human rights and other social issues. '

The. Board set Group Policies and formal delegations of authority as appropriate to all ¢ompanies, subsidiaries
and associations. The Group Policies provided by the Board, require that all procedures and systems of control
must be builtand operated in line with-any mandatory requirements and these therefore formulate a second line
of defence in the Esh Group governance model.

Internal and independent of operational management, are a range of Group functional teams. These include teams:
in Health, Safety Quality and Environment, Commercial, HR, IT and Internal Audit. All compliance teams report
directly to the Board.and have access to expert or specialist resources from professional advisors as required.
The Contpliarice teain will asseéss the adhetence to Group Policies:and Procedures. The outcome of compliance
assessments will be reported to the Board and an appropriate action plan devised with management, who are
supported through to implementation. These compliance ‘teams bring up the third line of defence in the Esh
Group governance model.

Deviation from any aspect of a Group Policy: requires ‘the express consent of the. Chief Executive Officer in
writing in advance,

1
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Corporate Governance (continued)

The Esh Group Board and Group Policies (continued)
All Group Policies are also publicly available in full detail on our website and intranet, but specific comment is
made. on the following core areas:

Employment Policies and Procedures
For all our employees, across all companies in the Group, there is a comprehensive Employee Handbaok. This

Handbook explains the: required and mandatory standards.of employee and manager behaviour and incorporates
specifically; the Esh Group, Values, Employee Code of Conduct and aspects of Health, Safety and Wellbeing.

It is also required that all workers for Esh Group, irrespective of engagement status, that they understand and
comply with the above standards whete they are appropriate for their role.

The Group supplements the Emiployee Handbook with other related policies or statemerits covering Slavery &
Human Trafficking, Gendér Pay and Equality & Diversity.

Ethical Governancé Approach A )

Through the Ethical Governanceé Approach, the highest standards of integrity and accountability are put ifito
practlce by the Board. These standards are expected to be adopted and adhered to by all company directors;
employees and third parfies, including sub-contractors.and their workers, and are evident throughout all relevant.

Group Policies.

A range of whistle blowing, anti-corruption and bribery policies and procedures support a culture-of open, honest.
and fair dealing. These policies and procedures are designed to minimise the risks of fraud .or corruption
occurrihg, as well-as to maximise the rate of detection:and subsequent corrective action. Any employee, worker
or member of the public is encouraged to speak out if they sée any wrong-doing or area of concern and to enable
this, the Group provides a fange of reporting routes to ficilitate ‘this_in . safe, appropriate and confidential
manner.

Health and Safety Policy and Procedures

1t is Esh Group Policy that its operations shall be conducted in such a way as to ensure, so far as is reasonably
practicable, the health, safety and welfare of all. its employees, subcontractors and site visitors and that its
activities will not adversely affect the health arid safety of others i.e: members of the public, children and any
other interested parties. We believe there is o conflict between our requirement to keep our workforce and
members of the public safe and our long-térm financial success.

The- Group recognises the importance of health. and safety i all its undertakings. It relies upon the active
participation of management and. workforce including sub-contractors to maintain safe working practices and
procedures in order to fulfil its legal obligations under the Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 and all other
relevant health and safety legislation. In addition to fulfilling its legal obligations, the aim of the Group is to
achieve best health and safety practice in all that it does primarily through adherence to ESH SAFE ~ Everyone
Safely Home our bespoke brand and comriitment.




Esh Holdings Limited

Directors and advisors

Michael Hogan, Non-Executive Chairman | Tenure: 52 years

Michael was appointed as Group Chairman on the retirement of Austin Donohoe. Michael is a Founder Director.
He set-up a fencing contracting business in 1970 and later formed Dunelm Homes and Deerness Fencing.. In
1999, he formed Dunelm Castle Homes, a joint venture with Lumsden-& Carroll. The relationship with Lumsden
& Carroll was formalised later that year with the formation of Esh Holdings, and Michael was previously Group
Chairman until 2004.

Andy Radcliffe | Group Chief Executive Officer: | Tenure: 14-years

Andrew (Andy) Radcliffe joined Esh Group in 2010.from Moores Furniture Group Limited in Wetherby, where
ke was Group Finance Director. Andy has extensive experience in séveral industry sectors and was awarded
Yorkshire Finance Director of the Year in 2009. In May 2017, Andy assumed the role of Group Chief Executive
Officer.

Stephen Wilkie | Executive Director] Tenure: 36-years

Stephen joined Luinsden and Catroll in 1987 as a trainee Engineer and was -appointed Managiiig, Director in
2008. In 2016 he was:additionally appointed Executive Director of Esh Group’s construction business. Stephen
was a board member of CECA for 11 years and is also.a Director of Esh Constructions utility. JV company, Esh-
Stantec. Stephen now oversees Esh Civils across the North East and Yorkshire and Deemess Fencing and
'Landscaping;

Phil Brown | Executive Director | Tenure: 18-years

Phil is also a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Building with over 20 years.experience in the private residential
sector and with extensive experience within both the public and private sector. Phil joined Esh 14 years ago and
is the Executive Director with responsibility for our Private House building business..

Tony Carroll Jor | Non-Executive Director| Tenure: 31-years

.As-a family member of Founder Director Tony Carroll Snr; Tony- Jnr Jomed the Board during 2017. Tony is a
full-time employee, having joined the company in 1992, cutrently enjoying, the position. of Health & Safety
Marnager.

John Lumsden Jnr | Non-Executive Direcjor | Tenure: 32-years

As:a family member of Founder Director John (Jack) Lumsden Snr,.John Jnr joined the Board during 2017. John
is a full-time employee, having joined the company .in 1991, currently enjoying the position of Construction
Manager.

Trading Name
Esh Group is a trading name of Esh Holdings Limited.

Company secretary of Esh Holdings Limited
A Law

Independént auditors
Armstrong Watson Audit itd
Floor One

One Strawberry Lane:
Newcastle-Upon Tyne

NE1 4BX
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Directors and advisors (continued)

Legal advisors:
Muckle.LLP

Time Central

32 Gallowgate
Newcastle upon Tyne
NEI 8AS

Bankers

Lloyds Bank plc

4th Floor

102, Grey. Streét
Newcastle upon Tyne
NE! 6AG

Bibby Financial Services
3 Floot

Walker House
Exchange Flags
Liverpool

L23YL

Swinburne Maddison LLP
Venture House

Aykley Heads Business Centre
Durham

DH1 5TS

Nucleus Commercial Finance Limited
Mezzanine Floor, St Albans House
57-59 Haymarket

London

SWI1Y 4QX
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Esh Holdings Limited

Directors’ report

The directors present théir directors’ report and audited financial statements-for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Group during the year were building construction, civil engineering and property
maintenance. The principal activity of the Comipany is that of holding investments.

Financial instruiments

The Group’s financial instruments comprise. of borrowings (principally. 2 bank. loan), cash, share capital, and
various items that arise directly from operations (such.as trade debtors, trade creditors etc). The main purpose of
these financial instruments i to raise finance for the Group’s operations and to manage. interest rate risk.

The main risks arising from the Group’s firtancial instruments are interest rate risk-and liquidity risk. The Board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these: risks and they are summarised below. These policies
have reinained unchanged throughout the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of retained profits, share capital; and bank borrowings. Thie.
Board, in agreement with their funders, have agreed that the short- to- medium-term outlook for interest rates
negates the need to initiate any hedging instruments. The Group’s finance lease borrowings are at fixed interest
rates.

Liguidity risk

The group has an assét backed loan facility: of £6m. This allows:the group to draw down loan against the level
of debtors which are outstanding at any time. This allows the business to manage its working' capital in an
effective and fléxible manner.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had cash at bank and in hand of £16.9m, which is expected to be more than:
sufficient o fund the working capital needs for the Group.

Credit risk

The Group trades largely with public funded and quasi-public-sector organisations. Whilst the Groiip engages
with private clients, these are credit risk assessed before trading commences and the directors believe that any
credit risk is efféctively managed. Exposure to. credit risk is therefore believed to be limited:

Paid dividends
£il dividends were paid in respect of the previous year (2022 nil).

Share capital ' ' '
There was no movement in the level of share capital in the year.

Resiilt for the year
The.result for the year is set.out in the Strategic report.
Political contributions

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries. made any political donations or incurred -any political
expenditure. during the year:
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‘Esh Holdings Limited
Directors’ report (continued)

Directors:
The directors who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as

follows:

AE Radcliffe
ST Wilkie

PJ Brown

MF Hogan

JG Lumsden Jnr.
AlJ Carroli Jor.

P Watson

All of the directors benefited from qualifying third-party indemnity provisions during. theyear -and at the date of
approval of the document.

Employees

The Company gives full consideration to applications for employment from péople with disabilities where the
réquirements of the job can bé adequately fulfilled. Where existing employees becoime -disabled, it is the
Company’s policy wherever practicable to provide continuing employment under normal terms and conditions
and to provide training, career development and promotion to employees with disabilities wherever appropriate.

During the year, the policy of prov1dmg employees with information about the Company has been continued
throuigh internal media methods.and holding regular meetings to review the Company’s performance. Employees
participate. in the success of the business through the Company’s bonus scheme.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities
The directors-are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial stateinents in ‘accordance with
applicable law and regulatioris.

Company law requires the directors to prépare financial statements for eachi financial year. Under that law, the
directors have prepared the Group and Company financial statements in accordance. with United ngdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising ERS “the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic.of Ireland” and applicable law). Under.company
law, the directors must not.approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they-give a true'and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group arid Company, and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

¢ selectsuitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and estimates that are-reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures-disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

+  prepare the financial statements on the going conceém basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
:Group and the Parent Company will continiie in business,

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show aiid éxplain the
Group and Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and'Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. The directors are-also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company, and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Directors’ report (continued)

Statement of directors’ responsibilities (continued)

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the company’s website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions.

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and each director
has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Future developments
The future developments of the entity are disclosed within the Strategic Report.

Independent auditors
Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditors will be deemed to be re-appointed and

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will therefore continue in office.

On behalf of the board

—_— —_

AE Radcliffe Esh House
Director Bowburn North Industrial Estate
26% June 2024 Bowburn
Durham

United Kingdom

DH6 SPF




Esh Holdings Limited

Independent auditors’ report to the directors of Esh Holdings
Limited

Opinion.

We have audited the financial statements of Esh Holdings Limited (the 'parent company’) and
its subsidiaries {the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 December 2023 which comprise the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated balance sheet, the company balance
sheet, the consolidated statement of changes in -equity, the company statement of changes in
equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, including
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 "The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable inthe UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

in our opinion, the financial statements:
- -giveatrue-and-fair view-of the-state ofthe group’s-and of the- parent ‘company's-affairs-as-at
31 December 2023 and of the group's profit for the year then ended;
e have been properly prepared in accordarice with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; .and
e have been prepared in accordance with the requurements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International ‘Standards on Auditing’ (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemenits section of our report. We are
independent of the group-and parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relévant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including thie FRC’s Ethical-Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with-these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have.obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going
concern basis of'‘accountingin the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to everits or conditions that, individually or collectively, may. cast significant doubt on the
group's or the parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least
twelve months from when. the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to goeing concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than
the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the
other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the exterit otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.




Esh Holdings Limited

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Directors of Esh Holdings
limited (continued)

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statemeénts or our knowledge
obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are. required to
determiné whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statemerits
‘themselves, if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that.there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions.on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
¢ the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements;
and
e the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In: the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group. and the parent company and
thieir environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material
misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report.in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
e the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns; or »
e certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not receivéd all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities.of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement. set out on page 16, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine Is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that ‘are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

in preparing ‘the financial statemerits, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's
and the parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable;
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parerit company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Esh Holdings Limited

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Directors of Esh Holdings
limited (continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free-from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonahle assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted.in accordance with 1SAs {UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggrégate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the:
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statemeénts.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements. in
respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud.is detailed below

Our' approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect. of
irregularities, .including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

* the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate
competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compiiance with applicable laws and
regulations; .

* we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the group through discussions with
directors and other management, and from our knowledge and understanding of the industry;

» we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material
effect on the financial statements or the operations of the group;:

* we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through
making enquiries of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

« identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the teamy
remained alert to instances of non-compliancethroughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the group’s financial statements to matenal misstatement,
including obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

-« making enquiries of management as. to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud,
their knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

» considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks. of fraud and non-compliance with laws
and regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:
» performed analytical procedures to ideritify any unusual or unexpected relationships;

o tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions, and. tested the operating effectiveness of
‘key controls on a sample. basis;
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Directors of Esh Holdings
limited (continued)

* reviewed the application of accounting policiés with focus on those with heightened estimation
uncertainty. .

In response to the risk of irregularities. .and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we
designed procedures which included, but were not limited to:

* agreeing financiaj statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;
* reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance; and
 enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims.

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an -unavoidable risk that we may not have
detected some material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly
planned and -performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, as-with any
audit, there remained a higher risk of non detection of irregularities, as these may involve. collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the-override of internal controls. We are not
responsibile for preventing fraud or non-compliance with laws and fegulations and cannot be
expected to detect all fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations. Material misstatements
that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may involve
deliberate con¢ealment or collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located
on the Financial Reporting Council’s website -at: https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
This deéscription forms part of ourauditors’ report.

Use of our report

This report Is made :solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company’s members.those matters we are required to state to them in .an auditors’
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibllity to anyone other than the company and the company’s members-as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opiniohs we have formed.

A e

simon Turner (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of

Armstrong Waston Audit Limited

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
Newcastle

26 June 2024
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Esh Holdings Limited

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Note £'000 £000

Turnover
‘Group and share of joint ventures 292,508 286,811
Less: Share of joint ventures' tumover (31,931) (25,920)
Group. Tumover 1 260,577 260,891
‘Cost of sales (244,671) (246,308)
Gross Profit 15,906 14,583
Administrative expenses before éxceptional items (16,201) (14,970)
Exceptional administrative expenses - -
Total administrative expenses (16,201) (14,970)
‘Share of aperating profit in joint ventures 3,200 3;252
-Operating profit after exceptional items 2,905 2,865
-Operating profit-after exceptional items 2 2,905 2,865
Profit on sale of fixéd assets. 65 43
‘Profiv/(loss) on sale of investments 733 (118)
Tnterest réceivable and similar income 226 103
Interest payable and similar expenses 6 (837) (845)
Profit before taxation 3,092 2,048
Add back loss attributable to minority inferest - -
glr:;ita l?:::re taxation atfributable to owners of 3,092 2,048
Tax on profit attributable to owners of the parent 7 (668) (488)
Profit for the financial year attributable to 2,424 1,560

owners of the parent

All results. derive. from continuing operations.




Esh Holdings Limited

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Note £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 7,128 8,632
Investment propertics 11 387 387
!nvestmems in joint ventures and participating 12 3,945 1841
interests
!Joans to joint ventures and participating 12 12,187 11,575
interests
::::ilc::;f:::ie;:‘:esriez éoint ventures and 16,132 13.416
Total fixed. assets.and investments -23,647 22,435
Current assets
Stocks 13 - 73 1,024
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 14 55,710 56,646
Cash at bank and in hand 16,891 12,414
73,324 70,084
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 15 - (61,130) (59,102)
Net current assets ) 12,194 10,982
Total assets less current liabilities 35,841 3347
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year - -
Net assets 35,841 33,417
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 18 22,256 22,256
Share premium account 29 29
Employment benefit trust reserve 18 (641) (641)
Retained earnings 14,197 11,773
Total shareholders’ funds 35,841 33,417

The financial statements on pages 22 to 63 were approved by the board of directors on 26" June 2024 and were
signed on its behalf by:

—_ —___

AE Radcliffe
Director

Company registered number: 03724890




Esh Holdings Limited

Company balance sheet as at 31 December 2023

2023 2022

Note £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 4,650 5,340
Investment properties 3 387 387
Investments 12 3,800 4,364

8,837 10,091
Current assets
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 14 26,988 25,856
Cash at bank and in hand 121 102
27,109 25,958

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 15 (21,346) (18,445)
Net current assets - 5,763 7,513
Total assets less current liabilities 14,600 17,604
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year - -
Net assets ’ 14,600 17,604
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital - 18 22,256 22,256
Share premium account 29 29
Employment benefit trust reserve 18 (641) (641)
Accumutated loss
At 1 January (4,040) (1,313)
Loss for the year . (3,004) (2,727)
Total shareholders' funds 14,600 17,604

Thé financial statements on pages 22 to 63 were approved by the board of directors on 26" June 2024 and were
signed on its behalf by:

— ——__

A E Radcliffe
Director

Company registered number: 03724890
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Esh Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31

December 2023

Called Share Employment Retained ~ Total

up-share premium benéfittrust  earning. shareholders’

capital account. reserve funds

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 January 2022 22256 29 (641) 10,213 31,857
Profit for the financial year - - - 1,560 1,560
Total comprehensive-expense for the year - - - 1,560 1,560
Balance at 31 December 2022 22,256 29 (641) 11,773 33,417
Profit for the financial year - - - 2,424 2,424
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - 2,424. 2,424
Balance'at 31 December 2023 22,256 29 (641) 14,197 35,841




Esh Holdings Limited

Company Statement of chahges in equity for the year ended 31

December 2023

Called Share Employment Retained Total
upshare premium benefittrust  earning shareholders'
capital account reserve funds
-£'000, £000 £'000 £:000 £'000

Bslance at 1 January 2022 22,256 29 (641) (1,313) 20,331
_ Loss for the financial year - - - 2,727) (2,727
Total compréhensiife expense for'the year - - - (2,727) (2,727)
-Balance at 31-December 2022 22,256 29 -(641) -(4;040) 17;604
Loss for the financial year - - . (3,004) (3,004)
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - (3,004) (3,004)
Balance at 31 Décember 2023 22,256 29 (641) (7,044) 14,600
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Esh Holdings Limited

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December

2023
2023 2022

Note £1000 £'000
Cash generated from operating activities 19 3,748 (8,159)
Taxation recéjved / (paid) 38) 691
.Ca'§h.(.u5ed in) / generated from operating 3,710 (7.468)
activities
‘Cashflow from investing activities
Purchase of tangible.assets (94) (2,044)
Proceeds from disposals of tangible assets 902 1,667
Investment in participating interésts 121 (1,440).
Disposal of investments - 167
Interest received 207 103
Dividends received 5 1,230,
‘gateiz‘_!:“(ged in) / generated from investing 1,141 317)
Cashflow from financing activities
Repayment of bank: borrowings/debt capitalisation - -
Interest paid (374) (551)
Net cash used in financing activities: (374) (551)
Net increasé/(decrease) in cash at bank and in hand 4,477 (8,336)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,414 20,750
Cash and cash equivalents-at the end of the-year 16,891 12,414
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Esh Holdings Limited

Statement of accounting policies

General information

Esh Holdings Limited (the “Company™) is a private company. limited by shares and is ificorporated in The United
Kingdom. The address of its registered office is Esh House, Bowbum North Industrial Estate, Bowburn, Durham,
DH&6.5PF.

The principal activities of the Group during the year were building construction, civil.engineering and property
maintenance. The prmclpal activity of the Company is that of holding investments.

Statement of compliance-

The Group-and individual financial statements of Esh Holdings Limited have been prepared in compliance with
the applicable United Kirigdom Accounting Standards including Financial Reporting Standard 102, ‘“The:
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland* (*‘FRS 102"*) and
the Companies Act2006.

Summary of significant accounting policies:

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation’ of these consolidated and separat¢ financial.
statements are set out below. These policies have been consisténtly applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared on the going concem basis, in accordance with
applicable UK Accounting. Standards, under the historical cost convention ‘as modified by recognition of
investment properties and.some financial asset arid financial liabilities at fair value.

The preparatiofi of financial statements requ'lres the use of certaini critical accounting estimates. Tt.also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group and Company accountmg policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement. or complexity, or areas wliere assumptions and éstimates are
significant to the financial statements are. disclosed in policy “Critical judgements and estimates in applying the
accounting policies” within this note.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 408 of the Companies Act from disclosing its
individual statement of comprehensive income.

Going concern A ‘ _ o
Further information on the group's business:activities, together with factors likely to affect its future development
are set out in the Chairman’s Report, the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report.

The Group's continuing operafions achieved EBITDA of £3.7m (2022:£3.7m) and closing net assets were
£35.8m (2022:£33.4m). The group-trades with a large number of customers and suppliers atross a number of
sectors-and expects to meet day to day working capital requirements through existing considerable cash reserves,
which totalled £16.9m (2022 £12.4m).

The Group has access to'a.£6m loan facility which is secured against assets within the business and which can
be drawn down dgainst the outstanding client applications and sales invoices of Esh Construction Limited. This
facility-was undrawn at the balance sheet, and ‘as such the group had liquidity available to it of £22.9m at that
date. The Group forecasts suggest that this facility will not need to be-drawn upon to-meet its day to day operating
needs. The facility is due for renewal in July-2026.

—
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Esh Holdings Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

The directors prepare and review: rolling forecasts, for a period beyond 36 months, Review of these,.and after
making further detailed enquiries, taking: into. account the factors discussed above, they have a reasonable
expectation that both the Parent Company and Group have adequate resources to continue in operational
‘existence for the foreseeable future and accordingly continue to prepare thé Parent Compahny and Group finaricial
statements. on a going concern basis.

Basis of consolidation ' '

The Group financial statements-consolidate the financial statements of the company and each. of its subsidiary
undertakings togéther. with thé Group's share of the results of joint venture undertakings and associates made up
to 31 December.

@

(v

Gip)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group.. Control is the power to govem the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Where the Group owns less than
50% of the voting powers of an entity but'controls the entity by virtue.of an agreement with other investors
which give it-control of the-financial and-operating policies of thi¢ entity it accounts for that entity as'a
subsidiary.

Investments in ‘subsidiary undertakings are: stated at cost, including those costs associated with the
acquisitions, less pr.ov.-isjon for any impairment in value. Where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying dmount of an investment may not be recoverable, an -impairment review is

‘performed. An impairment writé down is recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset

exceeds the higher-of the fair value less cost to sell and value-in use.

Where & subsidiary has different accounting policies. to the Group, adjustments are made to those.
subsidiary financial statements to apply the Group’s accounting policies when preparing the corisolidated
financial statements.

Where control of a subsidiary is lost, the gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The cumulative amounts-of any exchange differences on translation, recognised
in equity, are not included in the gain or. loss on disposal and are transferred to retdined eamnings. The
gain.or loss also includes amounts. included in the retained earnings that are required to be:reclassified to

profit.or loss but excludes those-amounts that are not required to be reclassified.

Where control of a subsidiary is achieved in stages, the initial acquisition that gave the Group control is
accounted for as a business combination. Thereafterwhere the Group increasés its controlling interest in
the subsidiary the transaction is treated as a transaction between equity holders. Ay difference between
the fair value of the consideration paid and the carrying amount of the non-controlling. interest acquired
is recognised directly in equity. No changes are made to the carrying value of assets, liabilities or
provisions for contingent liabilities.

Joint arrangements. o ' _
Investments in joint arrangements can take the form of jointly controlled operations, jointly controlled
assets, or jointly controlled entities. The classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations

‘of each investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangemeént. Esh Holdings Limited has joint

venture classified-as jointly ¢ontrolled entities.

Interests in jointly- controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method (mentioned below) after

initially being recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

Participating interests

A participating interest is an-entity, being neither a subsidiary nor-a joint venture, in which the Group
holds a long-term interest and where the Group has significant influence. The Group considers that it has
sighificant influence where it hias. thé power to pamclpate in the financial and operating decisions of the
associate. The results of associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting: (mentioned
below).
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Equity method of accounting

Under the. equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost (including transaction
.costs) and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses. of the
investee in the profit or loss. Dividends received or receivable from joint ventures are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share-of losses.in an equity-accounted investment equals-or exceeds its interest in the entity,
includihg any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group -does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations.or made payments ofi behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on fransactions between the Group and its joint ventures :are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these eritities. Unrealised losses.are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an imipairment of the asset transferred..

The carryinig amount of equiity-accounted investraents is-tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
“Impairment of non-financial assets” meéntioned within this note.

Any subsidiary undertakings or associates-sold ot acquired durmg the year aré included up to, or from, the dates
of change of control or change of significant influence respectively.

‘Where the Group has established employee. benefit trusts (‘EBT") and/or is the sponsoring entity;
notwithstanding the legal duties of the trustees, the Group considers'that it has ‘de facto? control of such entities.
Such arrangements are accounted for as -assets and liabilities of the sponsoring company' and included in the
consolidated financial statements .as appropriate. The: Company’s equity instruments held by the EBT :are
accounted for as if they were the Company’s own equlty and are treated as treasury shares. No gain or loss is
recoghised in profit or loss .or other comprehensive. income on the purchase, sale or cancellation of the
Company’s.own equity held by the EBT or the Group.

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Adjustments are
made to eliminate the profit or loss arising on transdctions with associates to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the entity.

Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102
FRS 102 allows a qualifying entity certain disclosure exemptions, if certain conditions, have been complied with,
including notification of and no objection to, the use of exemptions by the Company’s.shareholders. A qualifying
entity is-défined as-a member of a group that prepares publicly available financial statements, which give atrue
and fair view, in which that member is consolidated.

As a qualifying entity, the Company may take advantage of the following exemptions:

0] from the'requirementto prepare a statement.of cash flows asrequired by paragraph.3.17(d) of FRS102;

(ii) from the requirement to presént certain financial instrument disclosures, as required by sections 11 and
12 of FRS 102; ‘

(iii)  from the requirement to.presént a reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and
end of the year as required by paragraph 4. 12(a)(|v) of FRS 102; and

(iv)  from the requirement to disclose the key management personnél compensation in total as required by
paragraph 33.7 of FRS 102.
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Foreign Curiency
(i)  Finctional and presentation currency ‘
The Group financial statements are presented in pound sterling and rounded to thousands.

The Company's functional and presentation.currency is the pound sterling.

(i)  Transactions and balances
.Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions.

At each year end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-monetary
ifems measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the.date of the transaction and
non-monetary items measured at fair value -are measured using the exchange rate when fair value was
determined. '

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the translation
at year-énd exchange rates of monetary assets.and liabilities denomiinated .in .foreigh .currencies .are
recognised in the statenient of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and casti equivalerits.are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income ‘within ‘interest (expense)/ income’, All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented within ‘Other operating (losses)/gains’.

(ii)  Translation
The trading results of Group undertakings are translated into sterling: at the average exchange rates for
the year: The asséts and liabilities of overseas undertakings, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising ori acquisition, are translated at the exchiange rates ruling at the year end. Exchange adjustments
arising from the retranslation of opening net investments and from the translation of the profits or.losses:
at average rates are recognised iiii *Other comprehensivé income® and allocated to minority ingerest as
appropriate.

Turnover

Turnover is measured at the fair value of the-consideration received or receivable and represents the amount
receivable for goods supplied or seryices rendered, net of returns, discounts, intra-group sales and rebates
allowed by the Group and value addéd taxes.

Where the consideration receivable in cash or cash equivalents is deférred, and the arrarigement constitutes a
fihancing trarisaction, the fair value of tlie consideration is measured a$ the:present value of all future receipts
using the imputed rate of interest.

The Group recognises turnover when () the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the.buyer; (b) the Group retains no continuing involvement or control over the goods; (c) tlie amount of revenue
can be measured reliably; (d) it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and (e) when the
specific criteria relating to each of the Group's sales channels have been met, as described below.

(a) Long/short term contracts
Turnover on long term éontracts is récorded at cost appropriate to the stage of completion plus attributable.
profits, less amounts recognised in previous. years, as set.out in the accounting ‘policy for long term
contracts. Turnover oh short term contracts is recognised when the contract is completed.

31




Esh Holdings Limited

Statemerit of accounting policies (continued)
Turnover (cortinued)

(6)  Property sales -
Turnover on property sales is'recognised upon legal completion of legal title to the customer.

(c)  Supply of service
Turnover from the supply of services represents the value of services provided under contracts to the
extent that there is a right to consideration and is recorded at the value of the consideration due. Where.a
contract has only been partially completed at the reporting date tumover represents the. value -of the
sérvice provided to. date based. on a proportion of the total contract value. Tumover froin services is
recognised when the service has been performed.

Goyernment grants’

Government grants are recognised based on the accrual model and are measured at the fair value of the asset
received or receivable. Grants relating to assets are recognised over the expected useful life of the asset. Where
part of a grant relating to-an asset is deferred, it is recognised as deferred income.

Employee benefits:
The Group provides a range of beneﬁts to employees, including holiday arrangements and defined contribution -
pension plans.

@) Short term benefits
‘Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are recognised
as an expense in the year in which the service is received.

(i) Defined contribution pension pldns
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed coritributions into
a separate entity. Once the contributions have been paid the Group has no further payment
obligations. The assets of the funds are held separately from those of the Company in independently
administered funds. The contributions are recognised as an expense when they are due. Amounts
‘not paid are shown in accruals in the balance sheet.

The Group also contribuites to a self-administered pension scheme on behalf of certain directors. This is a money
purchase scheme and. contributions are charged to the statement of comprehensive income in accordance with
the rules of the scheme..

Taxation

Taxation expensé for the year coniprises current and defeired tax recognised in the reporting year. Tax is
recogmsed in the statement-of comprehenswe income, except to the extent that it reldtes to jtems:recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity: In this case tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity réspectively.

Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted.

) Current tax
Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year or prior years.
Tax is calculated on the basis of tax: rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the year end.
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

(i)  Deferred tax _ 4
Deferred tax arises from timing differences that are differences between taxable profits -and total
comprehensive ‘income as stated in the financial statements. These timing. differences arise from the
inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in years. different from those in which they are
recognised in financial statements.

Deferred tax is recognised on all timing differences at the reporting date. Unrelieved tax losses and other
deferred tax-assets are only recognised when. it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal
of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Deferred tax is measured using tax rates-and laws that have been-enacted or substantively enacted by the
year-end and that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

Business combiiiations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method.

The cost of a business combination is the- fair value of the consideration given, liabilities incurred or ‘assumed
and of equity instruments .issued plus the costs directly attributable to the business combination. Where control
is achieved in stages the cost is the consideration at the date of each transaction..

Contingent consideration is initially recognised at estimated amount where the consideration is prdbable and can
be measured reliably. Where (i) the contingent ¢onsideration is not considered probable or cannot.be reliably
measured. but subsequently becomes probable and measurable ‘or (i) contingent consideration previously
measured is adjusted, the amounts are recognised as an adjustment to the cost of the business combination.

On acquisition -of a. buginess, fair values are attributed to ‘the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities unless the fair value cannot be measured reliably, in-which case the value is incorporated in goodwill.
Where the fair value of contingent liabilities cannot be reliably measured they are disclosed on the same basisas
other contingent liabilities.

Goodwill recognised représents the excess of the fair value and directly attributable costs of the purchase;
consideration over the fair values to the Group’s- interest in the ideitifiable net assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

On acquisition, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating: units (‘CGU’s’) that are expected to benefit from the
combination.

Goodwill is amortised over its expected useful life which i is 10 years, the period ovér which the directors consider
the Group. will derive -continuing economic benefit. Goodwill is assessed for impairment when there are
indicators of impairment-and-any impairment is charged to the income statement. Reversals of impairment are
recognised when the reasons for the impairment.ho longer apply.

Negative goodwill arises where- combination fair value of the group’s: interest in the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired exceeds the-cost.of the business. The Group, after consideration of the assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities. dcquired-and the cost of the combination, recognises negative goodwill on.
the balance sheet and releases this to profit and loss, up to the fair valye of non-monetary assets acquited, over
the years in which the rion-monetary assefs-are récovered, approximately five years and any: excess over the fair
value of non-monetary.assets in the statement of comprehénsive income over thé year expected to benefit.
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Investments
In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiary undertakings, associates and joint ventures is
held at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Tangible assets and depreciation

Tangible assets are stated at cost (or.deemed cost) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.. Cost includes the: original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to
its working condition for its intended use..

Dépreciation is provided to writé off the cost less the estimated residual value of tangible fixed assets by equal
instalments_over their estimated useful economic lives as follows:,

Freehold larid and buildings.- 50 years
Leasehold properties - 40 years
Plant and machinery - 5 years

“No depreciation is provided on-freehold land.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted, if-appropriate, at the end of each
reporting year. The. effect of any change is accounted for prospectively.

‘Repairs, maintenance.and minor inspection costs are expensed as incurred.

Tangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected. On disposal,
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the: carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss and
included in ‘Profit on sale of fixed assets’.

Investment properties

Investment property; which. is property held to eam rentals and/or for capital appreciation, including property
under construction for such-purposes, is measured initiaily at its cost, including transaction costs.-Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties for which fair value can be measured reliably without undue: cost or
effort on .an ongoing basis are measured at fair value. Investment properties are revalued every 3 years. by
independent professionally qualified valuers and in the intervening years by the directors with the assistance of
independent professional advice as required. Details related to fair value determination of investment properties
is mentioned in note 11.

Investment properti€s are revalued every 3 years by independent proféssionally qualified valuers and in the
intervening years by the directors with: the assistance of independent professional advice as.required. Details
related to fair value determination of investment properties is mentioned in note 11.

No depreciation is provided in fespect of investment propérties. The Companies Act.2006 requires all propetties
to be depreciated. However, this requirement-conflicts with the generally-accepted accountirig prin¢iple set out
in Section 16 of FRS 102. The directors consider that, as these properties are not held for consumptlon but for
their investment potential, to depreciate them would not give a true and fair view and that it-is necessary to adopt
Section 16 of FRS 102 in order to-give a true and fair view.
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Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected. from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising:on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal ‘proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset)'is included in profit or loss in the year in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date non-financial assets not carried at fair value are-assessed- to determine whethier there is-an
indication that the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) may be impaired. If there is. such an indication the
recoverable amouit of the asset (of-asset’s cash génerating tmit) is compared to the carrying amount of the:asset
(or.asset’s cash generating upit),

The recoverabie amoinit of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is the higher of the fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. Value in usé is defined as the. ptésent value of the future cash flows before interest and tax
obtainable as a result of the asset’s (or asset’s cash generating unit) continued use. These cash flows are
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that represents the- currem market risk-free rate and the risks intherent in
the asset,

If the recoverable amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is estimated to be lower than the carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in ‘the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, unless the asset. has been revalued when the amount ‘is
recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any previously recognised revaluation. Thereafter
anyexcess is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

If an impairmeit loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the assét (or asset’s cash generating unit)
is increased to the revised éstimate of its recoverablé amount, but only to the extent that the revised camrying
amount does -not exceed the carrying amount that would. have been determined (net of dépreciation or
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Goodwill is allocated on acquisition to the cash generating unit expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Goadwill is included in the carrying valué of cash generating units for impairment testing.

Leases
At inception the Group assesses agréements that transfer the right to use assets. The assessment considers
whether the arrangement is, of contains, a leéase based on the substance of the arrangement.
) Finance lease .
Leases of assets that transfer substantially-all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are olassified
as finance leases.

‘Finance leases are capitalised at commencement of the lease as assets at-the fair value of the. 1¢ased asset.
or, if lower, the presént value of the minimum lease payments calculated using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. Where the implicit rate cannot. be détermined-the Group’s iricremental borrowing rate is
.used. Incremental direct costs, incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease, are included in the cost of
the asset.

Assets-are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful life-of the asset. Assets
aré assessed for impairment at each reporting date.
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Leases (continued )
(i) Fipance lease (continued)

' The capital element of lease obligations is recorded as a liability on ‘inception of the arrangement. Lease
payments are apportioned between capital repayment:and finance charge, using the effective interest rate
method, to produce-a.constant rate.of charge on the balance of the capital repayments outstanding.

(i) Operating lease
Leases that do, not fransfer all the risks and rewards .of ownership are classified as operating, leases.
Payments under operating leases are-charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(iii)  Lease incentives
Incentives received to-enter into an operating lease are credited to the statement of income and retained
earnings, to reduce the lease expense, on a straiglit-line basis over the period of the lease.

The: Group and Company have taken advantage of the exemption in respect of lease incentives,on leases
in existence on the date of transition to FRS 102 (! January 2014) and continues to credit such lease
incentives to'the statement of comprehensive income.over the period to the first review date-on which the
rent is adjusted to market rates.

Stocks

Housebuilding stocks and work in progress

Stocks and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price‘less cost to-complete and
sell. Work ift progress corprises direct materials, labour costs, site. overheads, -associated professional charges
and aother attributable éverheads.

Investments in land without the benefit of d planning. consent are initially included at cost. Regular reviews are
carriéd out to identify any impairment in'the value of the land with consideration to the exlstmg use value of the
land, likelihood of achieving a. planning: consent,. and the value. thereof. Provision is made to reflect any
irrecoverable amounts.

Other stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price Jess cost to complete.and séll. In determining
the cost of raw materials, consumables and goods purchaséd for resale, thie weighted average purchase price is
used.

At the end of each repotting, period stocks are assessed for impairment; If an itern of stock is impaired, the
identified stock is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell and an impairment charge is
recognised in. the consolidated statement of comptehensive income. Where a reversal of the impairment is
required the impairment charge-is reversed, up to the original impairment loss,:and is recognised as a credit in
the consolidatéd statement of comiprehensive income,

Cash and cash equivalents-

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank. overdrafts, when
applicable, are shown within borrowings in current liabilities,

36




Esh Holdings Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Provisions and contingencies

() Provisions.
Provisions are recogtiised when the-Group has a present legal or constructive obhgatlon as'a result of past
events; it is probable that an-outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
of'the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Where there are a number ‘of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is-determined by considering the class of obligations as a-whole. A provision is recognised
even ifthe likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same.class of obligations
might be small. '

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be.required to settle the
obligation using.a pre-tax rate that reflects current -market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The inciease in the provision due to-passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost, '

(i) Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised, except those acquired in a business combination. Contingent
liabilities arise as a result of past events when (i) it is not probable that there will be an outflow of
resources or that the amount cannot be. reliably measured at the reporting date or (ii) when the existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncettain future events not'wholly within the
Group’s control. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements unless the probability of
an outflow of resources is.remote,

Contingent assets are not recognised. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when'an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Long term contracts

The amount of ‘profit attributable to' the stage of completion of a long-térm contract is recogmsed whien the
outcome of the contract can be foreseen with.reasonable certainty. Turnover for such contracts i$ stated at-cost
‘appropriate:to their stage of completion plus -attributable profits, less amounts recognised in préevious years.
‘Turnover includes-the initial amount. agreed in the contract plus any variations in contracted work, to the éxtent
that it is probable ‘that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably. The stage. of completlon of a
contract is assessed by. reference to completion of a physical proportion of the contract work: Provision is. made.
for any losgés-ds soon as they ate:foreseen.

antra,crwo:-k 1n progress is stated at costs incurred, less those transferred to the statement of comprehensive
income, after dediicting foreseeable losses and payrments on a¢count not matched with turnover.

Amounts recoverable on contracts are included in debtors and represent turnover recognised in excess of
payments-on account.
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Financial instruments

Classification of financial instruments issued by the company
Financial instruments issued by the company-are treated as-equity (i.e. forming part of shareholders’ funds) only
to the extent that. they meet the following two conditions:

(a) they include no contractual obligations:upon the company to deliver cash or other financial assets

' or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities. with another party under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the company; and

(b)  where the instrument will or may be settled in the company’s own.equity instruments, it is either
a non-derivative that includes no obligation to deliver a variabie humber of the company’s own
equity instruments or is a.derivative that will .be settled by the company’s. exchanging & fixed
amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that thjs-definition'is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a-financiai liability. Where the
instrument so classified takes the legal form of the company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these
‘financial statements for cilled up share-capitdl and share prémium accourit exclude amounts'in rélation to'those

shares.

Finance: payments associated with financial liabilities are dealt with as part of interest ‘payable and similar
charges..Finance.payments associated with financial instruments that are classified as part of shareholders’ funis
(see dividends policy), are dealt with as appropriations in the reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds.

)

()

Financial assets- ' '
Basic- financial assets, including: trade and other receivables and cash and bank :balances are initially

recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the.

transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts-discounted at a market rate of interest.
Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

At the end of each reporting period financial asséts measured at amortised cost are assessed for objective

‘evidence of impairment. [f'an asset is impaired the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying

amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in: profit or loss.

If there is decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised the impaimient is reversed. The reversal is such. that the current carrying amount does not.
exceed what the carrying amount wouild have been had the impairment not previously been recognised.

The impairment reversal is recognised in profitor loss

Financial liabilities _
Basic financidl liabilities, including trade and-other payables and loans from fellow group companies, are
initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangemeént constitutes a-financing transaction, where.

the debt instrument is measured-at the present value of the future récéipts discounted at a market rate of

interest.

‘Debt instruments. are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

obhgatlon is gjlscharged, c\ancel,led or expires..
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Related party transactions

The: Group has taken advantage of the exemption, as provided by paragraph 33.1A of FRS 102 and does not
disclose transactions. with members of the same.group that are wholly owned. The Group discloses transactions
with related parties which are not wholly owned with the-same Group.

Dividends on shares presented within shareholders’ funds
Dividends. are only recognised as a liability to the extent that they are declared prior to the year end. Unpaid
dividends that do not meet these criteria are. disclosed in the notes.to the financial statements.

Critical accounting judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires managementto make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and labilities, revenue
and expenses; Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future. events that are reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period iri which the estimates are revised and in any future-periods
affected.

The estimates anid assumptions. that have a significant risk -of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amaquints of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are: addressed below:

) Turnover recognition
The Group’s turnover recogmtlon policies, which are set out above, are central to the way the Group
valies the work it has carried out in each financial year and have been cansistently apphed These policies
require forecasts to. be made of the outcomes -of long-ténm construction and service contiacts, which
requxre assessments and _)udgements to be.made on changes in work.scopes, contract programmes.and

(ii)  Long term contracts

' The amount of profit attributable to the stage of completion of a long-term contract is recognised when
the -outcome of the contract can be foreseen with reasonable certainty. Tumover for such contracts is
stated at cost-appropriate to their stage-of completion plus attributable profits, less amounts recognised
in ‘previous years. Turnover includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any: variations in
contracted work, to the extent that it is probable that.they will result in revenue and can be measured
reliably. The stage of complétion of a contract is. assessed by reference. fo. completion: of a physical
proportion of the contract work, Provision is made. for any losses as soon as they are foreseen.

(iii)  Valuation investients in.land )
Investments in land without the benefit of a planning consent are initially included at cost. Regular
reviews are. carried out to identify any impairment in the value of the land with consideration to the
existing use value-of the land, likelihood of achieving a planning consent, and the value thereof. Provision
is made to reflect any irrecoverable amounts..

(v)  Valuation investments insubsidiaries, associates and joint véntures
Investments in subs1d|anes associates and joint ventures are initially included at cost. Regular reviews

are carried out to identify any impairment -with consideration to the existing value of the investment,
likelihood of achieving future forecasted returns, and the valiie thereof. Provision is made to reflect any
irrecoverable amounts.
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Notes to the finaricial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023

1 Group Turnover

All turnover arises in- the United Kingdom from the following activities:

2023 2022
£000 £000
Constriction 197,527 216,052
'::z:sing wnd 18,992 23.438
Property services 44,010 21,307
Business:support 48 94
Group turnover 260,577 260,891
2 Operating profit after exceptional items
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Operating profit/(loss) is stated after charging:
Depreciation and other amounts written off tangible fixed assets:
Owned 760. 859
Hire of assets 11,216 9,382
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023

2 Operating profit after exceptional items (continued)

2023 2022
£'000 £000
Audit of the consolidated financial statements 7 30
OA;nounts receivable by auditors and their associates in respect
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries 115 158
Taxation compliance services - 80

Other tax advisory services - -

Fees shown above were paid to Armstrong Watson Audit Itd for the financial year 2023 (2022: Price Waterhouse
Cooper LLP)

3 Directors’ emoluments

Group
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Directors' emoluments 1,365 1,840
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes 91 138

The aggregate of emoluments of the highest paid director were £341,402 (2022: £384,042) and company pension
contributions of £13,134 (2022: £12,508) were made to a money purchase scheme on his behalf. Several directors
were remunerated through the group companies. No share options were exercised in the year, and no shares were
received or receivable in respect of qualifying services.

Included in the directors’ emoluments figures are redundancy payments of £nil (2022: £75,300)

Number of directors
2023 2022

Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under:

Money purchase schemes 7 8

All of the Company’s directors benefitted from qualifying third-party indemnity provisions.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

4 Staff numbers and costs

Group

The average monthly number of persons employed by the company (including directors) during the year,
analysed by category, was as follows:

Number of employees

2023 2022
Production staff 248 262
Administrative staff 475 453
723 715
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Wages and salaries 34,473 33,692
Social security costs 3,617 3,701
Other pension costs (note 22) 1,450 1,463
39,540 38,856

Included in staff costs for the group are redundancy payments of £101,855 (2022: £406,525)

Company

The average monthly number of persons employed by the company (including directors) during the year,
analysed by category, was as follows:

Number of employees
2023 2022

Production staff (weekly paid) - -

Administrative staff (monthly paid) 65 60

65 60
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4  Staff numbers and costs (continued)

The aggregate payroll costs of these¢ persons were as fofllows:

2023 2022

£000 £'000

Wages and salaries 3,254 3,715

Sociat security costs 355 366

Other-pension costs (note 22) 144 19s.

3,753 4,276

Included in staff costs for the company are redundancy payments of £nil (2022: £352,243)

5 Interest receivable and similar income

2023 2022

£'000. £000

Bank interest 226 103

6 Interest payable and similar expenses

2023 2022

£000 £000

On bank loans and overdrafts 837 845

837 845
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

7 Tax on profit attributable to owners of the,-,pareht

a) Tax charge included in profit.

2023 2022
£000 £000
UK corporation tax:
Current tax on-income for the year - -
Adjustments-in respect of prior yedrs (95) (340)
' -(95) -(340)
Shares of joint ventures' current tax. 648 533
Total current tax. 553 193
‘Deferred tax (sec note 16)
Origination/reversal of timing differences 70 (380)
Adjustment in respect of prior years 45 675
Total deferred tax 115 295
Tax on profit/(loss) 668 488

b) Reconciliation of tax charge

Factors affecting the tax charge for the current year » ) i
The current tax-charge for.the year is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 0f23.52%. The

differences are explained below:

2023 2022
Total tax reconciliation £'000 . £000
Profit before taxation 3,092 ‘ 2,048
Current tax at-23.52% (2022: 19%) 727 389
Effects of:
Income not taxable - (61)
Tax rate-changes 1 (186)
Items riot taxable or deductible (278) (59)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 98 70
Unrecognised deferred tax movement 170 -
Adjustments in respect of ptior years (59) 335
Total tax credit for the year (see above) 668 488




Esh Holdings Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

7 Tax on profit attributable to owners of the parent (continued)

Tax rate changes
From 1 April 2023 the corporation tax rate increased to 25% (previously 19%).

8 Dividends
The aggregate amount of dividends paid in year comprises:

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

Non-voting ordinary shares £1 each

Final dividends paid in respect of prior year but not recognised
as liabilities in that year - -

Dividends paid in respect of the year - -

Voting ordinary shares of £1 each

Final dividend paid in respect of prior year but not recognised as liabilities in
that year - -




Esh Holdings Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

9 Intangible assets

Group
Negative
Goodwill Goodwill Total
£'000 £'000 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2023 1,128 (2,277) (1,149)
Acquisition -
Disposal -
At 31 December 2023 1,128 (2,277) (1,149)
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2023 ‘ - L128 2,277) (1,149)
Disposal -
Charged in year -
At 31 December 2023 1,128 2,277) (1,149)

Net book value

At 31 December 2023 - - -

At 31 December 2022 - . -

The directors consider each acquisition separately for the purpose of determining the amortisation period of
any goodwill that arises. The following sets out the periods over which goodwill is amortised and the reasons
for the periods chosen:

Positive goodwill arising on a number of acquisitions is being amortised over a period of 10 years, the period
over which the directors consider that the group will derive continuing economic benefit.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

10 Tangible assets

Group

Freehold

land and Leasehold Plant &

Buildings properties Machinery Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 January 2023 5,745 56 8,446 14,247
Acquisition - - 94 94
Disposal (700) - (1,723) (2,423)
At 31 December 2023 5,045 56 6,817 11,918
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2023 531 36 5,048 5,615
Charge for year 59 5 696 760
On disposals (102) - (1,483) (1,585)
At 31 December 2023 488 41 4,261 4,790
Net book value -
At 31 December 2023 4,557 15 2,556 7,128

At 31 December 2022 5,214 20 3,398 8,632

Included in the total net book value of plant and machinery is £nil (2022: £nil) in respect of assets held under

finance leases and similar hire purchase contracts.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

10 Tangible assets (continued)

Company

Freehold

land and Plant &

buildings machinery Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 January 2023 5,733 775 6,508
Acquisition - 42 42
Disposal (700) (116) (816)
At 31 December 2023 5,033 701 5,734
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2023 518 650 1,168
Disposal (102) (89) (191)
Charged in year 59 48 107
At 31 December 2023 475 609 1,084
Net book vatue
At 31 December 2023 4,558 92 4,650
At 31 December 2022 5,215 125 5,340

Included in the total net book value of plant and machinery is £nil (2022: £nil) in respect of assets held under

finance leases and similar hire purchase contracts.
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11 Investment properties

Group Company
£'000 £'000

Valuation and net book value
At 1 January 2023 387 387
At 31 December 2023 387 387

The fair values of the Group’s investment property at December 31, 2023 and 2022 have been based on the
market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties, where the market
rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units
as well as other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made by
reference to the yield rates observed by the valuers for similar properties in the locality and adjusted based on
the valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the respective properties / other methods. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. There has been no change
to the valuation technique during the year.

Investment properties are revalued every 3 years by independent professionally qualified valuers and in the
intervening years by the directors with the assistance of independent professional advice as required.

The directors have reviewed the open market value of investment properties at the year end and consider the
carrying values to be equivalent to open market values.

The historical cost of the Group’s investment properties is £387,000 (2022: £387,000).
The historical cost of the Company’s investment properties is £387,000 (2022: £387,000).
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12 Investments

Group
‘Shares in ' .Loans to Shares in Loans to
Jjoint joint  participatin  participatin
veéntures. ventures ginterests 8 interests Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At |'January 2023 - 2,249 120 10,231 12,600
Additions - - 543 543.
Disposal - - - (564) (564)
At 31. Decempber.2023 - 2,249 120 10,210 12,379
Provisions
At 1 January 2023 - - - (905) (905)
Additions - - 905 905.
Disposal - - - 272) (272)
At 31 December 2023 - - - 272) @7n)
Share of post-acquisition reserves
At 1 January 2023 1,721 - - - 1,721
Retained profits less losses 2,104 - - - 2,104
At.31 December 2023 3,825 - - - 3,825
Net book valire
At 31 December 2023 3,825 2,249 120 9,938 16,132
At 31 December 2022, 1,721 i20 9,326 13,416

2,249
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12 Investments (continued)

Company
Shares in Sharesin  Loans to Loans to
group Loans to joint joint 'partit.;ip‘alihg
vndertakings subsldiaries ventures ventures interests Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At | January 2023 24,542 556 398 - 564 26,060
Prior yéar adjustment - . - - - -
e yred Castat 1 Jamuary 24,542 556 398 - 564 26,060
bisposal - - - (564) (564)
At 31 December 2023 24;542 556 398 - - 25,496
Provisions
At 1 January 2023 (20,742) (556) (398) - - (21,696)
Prior-year adjustment - - - - - -
e Cost:at.1 January {20,742) (556) (398) ; - (21,69)
Disposal - - . B L R
At 31 December 2023 (20,742) (556) (398) - - (21,696)
Net book value
At 31 December 2023 3,800 - - - - 3,800
At 31 December 2022 3.800 - . - 564 4,364

At the end of 2023 the directors conducted -a review of the carrying values of the company’s investments in
subsidiary undertakings. Based on this the carrying value of the investments are considered to be recoverable:
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12 Investments (continued)

The undertakings in which the Company’s interest at the year-end is more than 20% are as follows:

Proportion of

voting rights and
‘Subsidiary Undertakings ‘shares held Nature of business
ABC Rental Properties Limited! 100% Property letting
Boathouse Lane Projects Limited! 100% Land and property development
Border Construction (Holdings) Limited'- 100% Civil.engineering and building-contractor
Border Construction Limited! 100% Civil engineering and building contractor
E:;:Se ;)Yilkinson Building Contractors 100% Dormant
Dunelm {Bowburn) Limited’ 100% Land and property development
Dunéelm Homes (Seaham) Limited! 100% Housebuilder
Dunelm.Homes Limited 100% Housebuilder
Dunelm National Projects Limited' 100% Property development
Dunelm Property Services Limited! 100% :3;?] ‘housing ~ refurbishment of new
Esh Acomn Homes Limited' 100% Housebuilder
Esh Construction Limited 100% ‘Civil engirieering and building contréctor
Esh Developments Limited 100% Land:and propérty deyelopmerit
Esh EBT Trustee Limited 100% Non- trading
Esh Homes Limited 100% Housebuilder
Esh Remedios Limited!? 51% Site investigation
J Tonks (Transport) Limited 100% Waste disposal.and recycling -
Lumsden & Carroll Limited® 100% Cominercial builder
Remedios Limited'? 75% Site investigation
Stephen:Easten Building Limited? 100% Commercial builder
Tonks Recycling Limited 100% Waste disposal.and récycling-
Tursdale Business Park Limited’ 41%+12.5% Property létting
Tursdale Recycling Limited ‘ 100%. Wiiste disposal and recycling
‘Wilkinson Fatilities Services Limited! 100% Property and Facilities Management
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12 Investments (continued)

Proportion of )
) ‘voting rights. and

Joint ventures. shares held Nature of business
Boathouse Lane (Freehold) Limited' 50% Non-trading
Eastboume JV Limited : 50% Housebuilder

Esh Energy Limited! 49% Dissolved 19th November 2019
Esh Stantec. Limited 50% Civil engineering
Esh.Salutation Road Limited 50% Housebuilder
Heighington JV. Limited 50% Housebuilder

West Park JV Limited. 50% Housebuilder
Miiddleton St Geokge JV Limited 50% Housebuilder-
Prestige Exclusive Homes Limited! 50% Property development
‘Neashiam Road.JV Limited 50%. Hausebuilder
Participating Interests,

Philadelphia Estates Limited! 30% Property letting,
Philadelphia Properties Limited! 30% Property letting
Speed 8767 Limited! 30% Property letting

Esh Space The Park Limited' 15% Property development
M62 Developments Limited! 3% Dormant

*votitig  +equity ‘investment tield indirectly scottish registered company.

Investménts: are held. directly by Esh Holdings Limited (except where noted). All holdings represent ordinary
share capital, and with the exception of those noted above all companies are incorporated in the United Kingdom.

The registered office of Esh Holdings Limited is Esh House, Bowburn North Industrial Estate, Durham DH6
5PF. All subsidiaries, Joint ventures and Participating Interests are also registered at Esh House, with the
exception of compariies registered in Scotlarid as marked above which are registered at Botany Mill; Roxburgh
St, Galashiels, Scotland, TD1 1PB.
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13 Stocks

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Land-stock and work in progress 159 303 - -
Raw materials and consumables 564 721 - -
723 1,024 - -

The amount.of stock recognised as:an expense during the year was £2,808,469-(2022: £3,194,929)

There is no significant difference bétween the teplacement cost of the stock -and its carrying amount.

14 Debtors amounts falling due within one year

Group Company

2023 2022 2023 2022

£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Trade Debtors 6:913 10,240 20 24
Amaounts recoverable on contracts 26,270, 24,295 - -
Amounts owed by group undertakings 13,655 13,816 25,181 24,445
Deferred tax (note 16) - 2412 2,493 736 566
I;A;nh(i:;x;tast.iz\;:t:gegdenaklngs in ‘which the entity has a 1,152 1,809 4 5
Corporation tax recoverable - - -
Other debtors 3,390 1.990 215 125
Prepayments and accrued income 1,916 2,003, 832 691
85,719 56,646 26,988 25,856
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15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £1000 £'000 £'000
' Payments received on account 9,156 6,763 - -
Trade creditors 9,562 8,597 593 398
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 17,404 14,589
Amg»qmgpwgd to undertakings in which the entity has.a . 14 _ .
_participating:interest
VAT payablé 1,075 1,935 294 224
Corporation tax %) 89 - 16
Other taxation and social security. 1,334 1,516 106 163
Other creditors 2,414 2,022 1 203
Accruals and. deferred income 37,598 38,166 2,948 2,850
61,130 59,102 21,346 18,445
Amounts owed to group undertakings do.not bear- interest and are not-secured.
16 Provisions for deferred tax
Group Company
£‘009 £000
"Provision for deferred tax:
At 1 January 2023 (note 14) 2,493 566
Crédit to'the profit and loss current year-(note 7) (70) 181
Adjustment, in respect of prior period - -
Disposal of investment in group subsidiary - -
CGredit to the profit dnd loss prior year (note 7) (i an
2,412 736 .
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16 Provisions. for deferred tax (continued)

The elements of deferred taxation are as follows:

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Differences between accumulated depreciation and capital
all es
atlowance (984) (1,061) (654) (659)
Short term differences 17 22 - 3
R&D expenditure credit 29 42 - 13
On losses carried forward. 3,350 3,490 1390 1,209
2,412 2.493 736 566
17 Financial instruments
Group
The Group has the following financial instruments:
2023 2022
Note £'000 £'000
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Trade debtors 14 ' 6,913 10,240
Armiounts recoverable on contracts 14 26,270 24,295
Amounts owed by group undertakings 14 13,655 13,816
Amouiits owed. by undertakings in which the entity .
has a participating interest 14 1152 1,809
Other debtors, 14 3,390 1,990
51,381 52,150
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17 Financial instruments (continued)

.Group (continued)

2023 2022
Note £'000 £000
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Amounts owed to undertakings in which the entity has 15 . 14
a participating interest
“Payments received-on-account 15 9,156 6,763
Trade creditors 15 9,562 8,597
Other creditors 15 2,414 2,022
Accruals 15 37,598 38,166
Other taxation and social-security 15 1,334 1,516
60,064 57,078
Company
2023 2022
Note £'000 £'000
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Trade.debtors. 14 20 24
Amounts owed by group undertakings 14 25,181 24,445
Am?u.nt's .Q\\{(?d.by undertakings in whichthe entity has a 14 4 5
participating interest
Other debtors i4 215 125
Corporation tax 14 - -
24,599

25420
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17 Financial instruments (continued)

2023 2022
Note: £000 £000
Financial liabilities meéasured at-amortised cost:
-Amounts owed to group undertakings 15 17,404 14,589
Trade creditors 15 593 398
Other creditors 15 1 205
Accruals. 15 2,948 - 2,850
Other taxation and social security 15 106 163
.21,052 18,205
18 Called up share capital
‘Group and company
] . 2022
Number.of 2023 Number-of 0 .
shares £'000 shares £'000
Allotted, called up; issued and fully paid’
Non-voting ordinary shares of 0.1p each 9,834,967 10 9,834,967 10
Variable dividend ordinary shares.of £1 each 14,286,791 14,287 14,286,791 14,287
Voting preference’ shares of £1 ‘each 7,959,638 7959 7,959,638 1,959
32,081,396 22,256 32,081,396 22256

Non-voting ordinary shares

Shareholders are entitled to.such dividend as.may. be declared by the Board subject to preferential rights of the
voting and hon-voting preference shares. Not entitled to vote. On a return of asséts, liquidation or winding up
entitled to amounts paid up plus balance of-any surplis-after séttlément of rights of other classes of share.
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18 Called up share capital (continued)

‘Variable dividend ordinary shares

Shareholders are entitled to-such dividend as declared by Board:subject to preferential rights of the voting and
nion-voting preference shares. Not entitled to vote. On return of assets, liquidations -or winding up -entitled to
payment of £1.50-per share, in priority to nor-véting ordinary shares-only.

Voting preference shares

;Shz_irehdlders-are ‘entitied to dividends as may be declared by the Board in preference to any other class of share.

Entitled to one vote per share. On liquidation, return of assets or winding. up they are entitled to payment of £1
per share in preference to all classes of share. Redeemable at Company’s.option only. Whilst these shares are

‘Preference’ in title; this title refers only to their primary rank in terms of any dividend that may be voted, or in

othier distribution as described above. They are therefore deenied to be equity in nature,

The Group and Company’s other reserves are as follows:
‘The share premium account contains the premium arising on issue of equity shares.

The retained eamings represent cumulative profits or losses, including unrealised profit on the re-measurement
of investment.properties, net of dividends paid.and other adjustmeats.

Employment bénefit triist (EBT) reserve consists of shares repurchased by the Group's Employee. Benefit Trust,
At the end of the year the EBT held 229,743 preference shares of £1-each (2022: 229,743), nil non-voting shares
of 0.1p each (2021: 0.1p)-and 305,783 voting-ordinary shares.of £1 each (2022: 305,783) at a combined cost of
£640,972 (2022: £640,972). '

None of the shares held by the EBT are under option to employees and none of them have been conditionally
gifted to any employees.
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19 Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2023 2022
£'000 £000
:’;::’i:/r(l;;s:) for-the financial year attributable to owner's of 2.424 1,560
{Loss)/profit for the financial year attributable to minority ; X
interest
-Profit/(loss)-for-the:financial-year 2,424 1,560
Tax on loss. attributable to owners of the parent 668 488
Tax on loss attributable.to minority interest ‘ - -
Net interest expense 611 743
Income from shares in group undertakings - -
(Loss)/gain from sale of investments (733) -
Profit from joint ventures ' (3,200) (3,252)
Negative goodwill on acquisition. - -
Profit/(loss) on sale of fixed assets (65) “3)
Operating (loss)/profit (295) (504)
Amortisation-of intangible assets - -
Depreciation of tangible assets. 766 859
Revaluation of invéstment property - -
Working capital moyements
- (Increase)/decrease in invenfories 298 211)
- (Increase)/decrease in deblors 858 (8.001)
- Iricrease/(decrease) in payables 2,127 (302)
Cash generated from operating activities 3,748 (8,159)
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20 Contingent Liabilities.

Banking arrangements

The conipany is party toa group funding arrangement with certain of the:companies in the Esh group, which was
set up in 2023. Funding of up to-£6m is available to be drawn down against the debtors of Esh Construction_
Limited. Securityis provided to the funder, Bibby Financial Services Limited, by means of charges onthe Land
and Buildings held within Esh Holdings Limited and Plant and Machinery held in Esh Construction. Limited,
togethér with a first ranking debenture across:the assets and liabilities of certain group companies (including the
Company). The amount drawn on the facility at 31 December 2023 amounted to £nil (2022: £xil).

There are no.other known contingent liabilities.

21 Commitments

‘Capital commitments at the énd.of the financial year for which no provision has been made are as follows:

Group Company
2023 2023 2023 2022
£'000 £'000 £000 £000

Contracted » ) - - . -

At 31 December 2023 the Group. had the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for each. of the following: periods:

2023 2022
£'000 £000
Group
‘Operating leases which expire:
Within -one yeaf 487 405.
Later than one year 702 343.
More thdn five years _ - -
1,189 748
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22 Pension scheme

Group

The Group operates .a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents
contributions payable by the group to'the scheme.and amounted to £1,449,908 (2022: £1,462,842). Contributions
amounts to £20,388 (2022: £25,867) were payable to the schéme and are included in creditors.

Company

The Company operates a defined. contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge forthe year represents
contributions payable by the company to the'scheme and amounted to £144,342 (2022: £195,086).

Contributions amounting to £431 (2022: £3,886) were payable to the scheme and are included in creditors.

23 Ultimate parent company and parent undertaking of largest group of
‘which the company is a member
The company is a subsidiary undertaking of Esh Investments Limited, the ultimate and immediate parent
company: incorporated in the United Kingdom.

The largest group in which ‘the results of the Company are ‘consolidated is that headed. by Esh lnvestments
Limited, incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered at Esh House, Bowbum North Industrial Estate,
Durham DH6:5PF. The consolidated financial stateiments of this group are available to-the public and may be:
obtained from Companies house. 4

The directors do niot consider thiere to be an individual ultimate coritrolling party.
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24 Related party transactions

Transactions with related bompanies during the year ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 were:

Sales Purchases Debtors: Creditors
2023 2022 .2023, 2022, 2023 2022. 2023 2022
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 -£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Prestige Exclusive Homes Lirmited

Loan - - - - 308 305 - -
- Middleton St Geotge Linited
Trade 12 28 - 9 - - - 1L
ESH.DBC Limited
Trade 5,945 -5,370° - 13 243 388 - -
West Park JV Limited'
Trade. 5,334 9,882 - 53 221 483 - -
Eastbouine JV Limited
Trade - 10 - 4 - - - 1
Heighington-JV Limited
Trade - 7 - i - 6 - 2
Esh Salutation Road Limited
“Trade - - - 8 - - - -
Hurworth.Gardens JV 'Ltd
Trade 827 - - - 139 - - -
Neasham Road JV
Limited.
Trade 7,151 8,694 - - 244 627 - -

19,269 23,991 - 88 1,152 1,809 - 14,

Other than the transactions disclosed above, the Company’s other related party transactions were with wholly
owned subsidiaries and so have not been disclosed.

The group-do not have any compensation to key management personnel (other than directors) as disclosed in
note 3.
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